



USER MANUAL

RGBlink

Article No: RGB-RD-UM-X2E009 Revision No: V1.9

CONTENTS

CONTENTS	1	
Declarations	3	
FCC/Warranty	3	
Operators Safety Summary	4	
Installation Safety Summary	4	
Chapter 1 Your Product	6	
1.1 In the Box	6	
1.2 Product Overview	7	
1.2.1 Back Panel	8	
1.2.2 Front Panel	10	
1.2.3 Dimension	11	
Chapter 2 Install Your Product	12	
2.1 Plug in Signals	12	
2.2 Plug in Main Power	12	
2.3 Turn on Your Product	12	
Chapter 3 Use Your Product	13	
3.1 Use the MENU Button	13	
3.2 MENU Structure	14	
3.3 Use the Menu	15	
3.3.1 OLED	15	
3.3.2 Main Menu	16	
3.3.3 Recall	16	
3.3.4 System	17	
3.3.5 Language	18	
3.3.6 Factory Reset	18	
Chapter 4 Control by XPOSE	19	
4.1 Software Installation	19	
4.2 Software Operation	21	
4.2.1 Login to the Software	21	
4.2.2 Connect the Device	22	
4.2.3 Output Settings	25	
4.2.4 Operation Mode		
4.2.5 Input Settings	44	
4.2.6 System Settings	47	
4.2.7 Slave Unit		
4.2.8 Access Control	53	
Chapter 5 Order Codes	55	
5.1 Product	55	
5.2 Options	55	
5.2.1 Input Options	55	
5.2.2 Output Options	55	
5.2.3 Other	56	

Chapter 6 Appendix	
6.1 Specification	
6.2 Software Upgrade	
6.3 Install Options	
6.3.1 Install Input Module	
6.3.2 Install Power Module	
6.4 Care and Preventive Maintenance	69
6.4.1 Clean Cooling Fan	69
6.5 Terms & Definitions	
6.6 Revision History	

Thank you for choosing our product!

This User Manual is designed to show you how to use this video processor quickly and make use of all the features. Please read all directions and instructions carefully before using this product.

Declarations

FCC/Warranty

Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Statement

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a class A digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference when the equipment is operated in a commercial environment. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instruction manual, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. Operation of this equipment in a residential area may cause harmful interference, in which case the user will be responsible for correcting any interference.

Guarantee and Compensation

RGBlink provides a guarantee relating to perfect manufacturing as part of the legally stipulated terms of guarantee. On receipt, the purchaser must immediately inspect all delivered goods for damage incurred during transport, as well as for material and manufacturing faults. RGBlink must be informed immediately in writing of any complains.

The period of guarantee begins on the date of transfer of risks, in the case of special systems and software on the date of commissioning, at latest 30 days after the transfer of risks. In the event of justified notice of compliant, RGBlink can repair the fault or provide a replacement at its own discretion within an appropriate period. If this measure proves to be impossible or unsuccessful, the purchaser can demand a reduction in the purchase price or cancellation of the contract. All other claims, in particular those relating to compensation for direct or indirect damage, and also damage attributed to the operation of software as well as to other service provided by RGBlink, being a component of the system or independent service, will be deemed invalid provided the damage is not proven to be attributed to the absence of properties guaranteed in writing or due to the intent or gross negligence or part of RGBlink.

If the purchaser or a third party carries out modifications or repairs on goods delivered by RGBlink, or if the goods are handled incorrectly, in particular if the systems are commissioned operated incorrectly or if, after the transfer of risks, the goods are subject to influences not agreed upon in the contract, all guarantee claims of the purchaser will be rendered invalid. Not included in the guarantee coverage are system failures which are attributed to programs or special electronic circuitry provided by the purchaser, e.g. interfaces. Normal wear as well as normal maintenance are not subject to the guarantee provided by RGBlink either.

The environmental conditions as well as the servicing and maintenance regulations specified in this

manual must be complied with by the customer.

Operators Safety Summary

The general safety information in this summary is for operating personnel.

Do Not Remove Covers or Panels

There are no user-serviceable parts within the unit. Removal of the top cover will eXPOSE dangerous voltages. To avoid personal injury, do not remove the top cover. Do not operate the unit without the cover installed.

Power Source

This product is intended to operate from a power source that will not apply more than 230 volts rms between the supply conductors or between both supply conductor and ground. A protective ground connection by way of grounding conductor in the power cord is essential for safe operation.

Grounding the Product

This product is grounded through the grounding conductor of the power cord. To avoid electrical shock, plug the power cord into a properly wired receptacle before connecting to the product input or output terminals. A protective-ground connection by way of the grounding conductor in the power cord is essential for safe operation.

Use the Proper Power Cord

Use only the power cord and connector specified for your product. Use only a power cord that is in good condition. Refer cord and connector changes to qualified service personnel.

Use the Proper Fuse

To avoid fire hazard, use only the fuse having identical type, voltage rating, and current rating characteristics. Refer fuse replacement to qualified service personnel.

Do Not Operate in Explosive Atmospheres

To avoid explosion, do not operate this product in an $e \times plosive$ atmosphere.

Installation Safety Summary

Safety Precautions

For all X2processor installation procedures, please observe the following important safety and handling rules to avoid damage to yourself and the equipment.

To protect users from electric shock, ensure that the chassis connects to earth via the ground wire provided in the AC power Cord.

The AC Socket-outlet should be installed near the equipment and be easily accessible.

Unpacking and Inspection

Before opening X2processor shipping box, inspect it for damage. If you find any damage, notify the shipping carrier immediately for all claims adjustments. As you open the box, compare its contents against the packing slip. If you find any shortages, contact your sales representative. Once you have removed all the components from their packaging and checked that all the listed components are present, visually inspect the system to ensure there was no damage during shipping. If there is damage, notify the shipping carrier immediately for all claims adjustments.

Site Preparation

The environment in which you install your X2 should be clean, properly lit, free from static, and have adequate power, ventilation, and space for all components.

Chapter 1 Your Product

1.1 In the Box



Note:

AC Power Cable supplied as standard according to destination market. Upgrading tool package and user manual are stored in the U disk, please keep it.

1.2 Product Overview

X2is a multiple outputs video processor, it offers nine card cages that accepts a wide variety of video signals, including VGA, CVBS, SDI, HDMI, H.264, 4K and USB (for media files play). X2combines truly seamless, fade in fade out, glitch-free switching with advanced scaling technologies to meet the requirements of high quality, high resolution video presentations. X2supports EDID editing for VGA, HDMI input ports and read EDID for output ports, the EDID can be modified by windows control program, users can edit the EDID of input port according to the resolution of outputs to achieve the optimal input resolution.

X2also supports resolution real-time total adaptation, color uniformity compensation technology and 90°, 180° and 270° rotate. In addition, it supports local front panel operation, remote widows based software control by Ethernet, and WIFI control. In addition, X2 is based on replaceable input optional modules structure, with different modules, you can reach more possibility and application range.



X2 System Connection Diagram

1.2.1 Back Panel



Input Option Slots

	X2provides 4 input option slots, range of inputs are available for user fitting, including
	S-HDMI, SDI, VGA, CVBS, USB, HDMI, H.264 and 4K.
	<u>S-HDMI</u>
	Each HDMI module supports 4 HDMI-A inputs. Standard signal from computer can
	input.
	<u>3G-SDI</u>
	Each SDI module supports 4 SDI inputs. Standard 3G-SDI signals can input.
	VGA
	Each VGA module supports 3 DB15 inputs. Standard VGA signals can input.
	CVBS
	Each CVBS module supports 4 BNC inputs. Standard video signal from players,
1	cameras can input.
1	<u>USB</u>
	Each USB module supports 4 USB-A inputs. Access the USB device or mobile hard
	disk with USB storage function. Support general image and video formats.
	<u>H.264</u>
	Each H.264 module supports 4 RJ15 inputs. Standard signal from cameras and router
	can input.
	<u>4K</u>
	Each 4K module supports 1 HDMI input and 1 DP input, each with loop.
	The HDMI input can input the image signal from computer. The HDMI Loop can
	connect to the HDMI input of the ne \times t X2or the device with HDMI input.
	Standard DisplayPort signals can be input for DP input. The DP Loop can connect to the
	DP input of the ne \times t X2or the device with DP input.
Progra	Im Output Option Slots

X2provides 4 output option slots, range of inputs are available for user fitting, including HDMI and SDI. HDMI Connect to the display device, video processor or matri× with HDMI input. <u>3G-SDI</u>

Connect to the ne \times t device with SDI input.

Preview Output Option Slots

	The preview module supports 2 H.264 output and 1 HDMI output.
	<u>H.264</u>
3	Connect to the ne \times t device with RJ45 input.
	HDMI
	Connect to the display device, video processor or matri \times with HDMI input.

Genlock Connectors

	It includes 1 BNC connector and 1 HDMI-A connector
4	BNC connector receive sync signal from the controller or signal generator
	HDMI-A receive sync signal from computer.

Control Connectors

	It includes 1 LAN port, 1 U-LINK IN, 1 U-LINK OUT, 1 DIP switch and 1 antenna
	port.
	Ethernet
5	Connect to TCP/IP network for remote control by windows software.
	<u>U-LINK IN</u>
	Connect to the U-LINK output of the ne \times t X2, adopt 3.5mm jack audio interface, for
	multiple cascade.
	<u>U-LINK OUT</u>
	Connect to the U-LINK input of the ne \times t X2, adopt 3.5mm jack audio interface, for
	multiple cascade.
	DIP Switch
	To set the device address, identifying the processor when multiple devices are linked
	Antenna
	SMA F for standard antenas (Wifi module sold seperatly)

Power Connection

6	Power Input
	Main power input AC 100-240V MAX 205W.

1.2.2 Front Panel



Display

OLED Display
Displays current status of the product, and for feature selections provides
interactive choices in conjunction with buttons on the front panel.

Multi-Function Buttons

Illuminated Buttons

	MENU Button
MENU	This button used for menu selections - refer to Understanding the MENU
	Structure.
	Push the button again will return to the last level menu or $e \times it$ the menu.
	POWER Button
POWER	Power button, push the button, the touch screen will pop up the confirm box,
	select "OK", and turn the device off.

Control Interface

f	USB Interface
	Use for device upgrade.

1.2.3 Dimension

Following is the dimension of X2for your reference:







Chapter 2 Install Your Product

2.1 Plug in Signals

Connect signals to the product (ensure all devices are powered off first). Tighten connector screws/locks where provided.



For connector protection and for additional cable support this product is fitted with protection frames on either side of the device. For cable support use cable ties to attached to the protection frames to avoid stress on signal connectors.

2.2 Plug in Main Power

Connect IEC cable to device and plug into wall socket. Turn on power at wall socket.

2.3 Turn on Your Product

The device will enter to the boot interface, and OLED display will show as below, completing initialization before loading last settings and input/output configuration. On delivery, the output format is defaulted to $1920 \times 1080 \times 6$



Chapter 3 Use Your Product

3.1 Use the MENU Button

Push the [MENU] button to enter the menu display.

Turn the rotary knob to navigate to the menu item required. The \rightarrow symbol shows the current item. Push the knob to select and enter into the menu item. As shown in the figure below:

3.2 MENU Structure

The MENU structure is shown in the figure below:



3.3 Use the Menu

Use the menu system for convenient and intuitive operation. X2OLED display shows the menu items. The OLED display will show the default state when the menu is not in use, or the operation has timed out. Using the MENU button and rotary knob in the front panel, the OLED display will show the corresponding menus according to user selections.

3.3.1 OLED

Turn the power switch to the ON position, the OLED display will show the start-up interface and show the default menu after completing initialization as below:



Introduce for the above information:

	Timer
1	Shows the timer state of the product.
	When not displayed here, the timer can be set via the SYSTEM menu.
	<u>Ethernet</u>
2	Displays whether Ethernet connection is active or inactive. Ethernet settings are
	available in the SYSTEM menu.
	<u>Temperature</u>
3	Shows the temperature of the product.
	When not displayed here, the temperature can be found via the SYSTEM menu.
	Fan Control
4	Shows the current speed of the product.
	When not displayed here, the speed can be set via the SYSTEM menu.
	<u>IP Address</u>
5	Shows the IP address of the product.
	When not displayed here, the IP address can be set via the SYSTEM menu.
	Output Resolution
6	Show the current output resolution. A wide range of resolutions are supported - refer
	to Specification.
7	Software version

	Shows the software version of the product.
	When not displayed here, the serial number can be found via the SYSTEM menu.
	Serial Number
8	Shows the serial of the product.
	When not displayed here, the serial number can be found via the SYSTEM menu.

3.3.2 Main Menu

Push the MENU button in the default state and turn the rotary knob, the OLED display will show the main menus as below:

->RECALL	>>
SYSTEM	>>
LANGUAGE/语言	>>
FACTORY RESET	>>

There are 4 menu items in the main menu, and display in 1 page. Turn the rotary knob, and select any menu above, push the rotary knob to confirm, the OLED display will show the submenu. If push the MENU button, the OLED display will return to the last level menu.

3.3.3 Recall

->SCENE	SCENE 1
RECALL SAVE	PAGE 1
DELAY RECALL	>>

SCENE	Save all current settings with the X2to 1 of the 16 available slots.
DECALLSAVE	Restores/Loads all current settings with the X2from 1 of the 16 available
KECALL SAVE	slots.
	SCENE
	Select the scene that will delay call.
DELAY	SAVE PAGE
RECALL	Select the save page that will delay call.
	DELAY TIME
	Delay output time setting.

3.3.4 System

->SYSTEM INFO	>>
DATE&TIME	>>
ETHERNET	>>
FAN CONTROL	>>
->TIMER	>>
BEEF	ON
TEMPERATURE	>>
LIGHT STYLE	MODE 7

	<u>SN</u>
	Display the serial number of the device.
	DEVICE INFO
SYSTEM INFO	Display the version of input card, output card, COM. CARD and KEYPAD.
	TECH SUPPORT
	Display the factory sales, customer service, email and other contact
	information, etc.
	User can view and change the date, time and week, view the current time,
DATEXTIME	total time and boot times.
ETHERNET	DHCP, IP, mask, gateway, MAC and WIFI setting.
	User can enable or disable the DHCP function.
	Default IP address is 192.168.000.100, mask is 255.255.255.000, gateway is
	192.168.000.001.
	Enable or disable the WIFI function. When select "ON", STA or AP mode
	can be selected.
	AUTO SPEED
	Enable or disable the auto speed function
FANCONTROL	CURRENT SPEED
	Set the current speed.
TIMED	User can set the timer power on and timer power off from Sunday to
IIVIEK	Saturday. When set timer as "ON", the timer tasks will take effect.
BEEF	Enable or disable the beep function.
	ALARM
TEMPERATUR	Set the alarm temperature. The device will alarm when reach the alarm
E	temperature.
	UNIT

	Select the unit as °C or °F.
I ICUT STVI E	X2provides 8 kinds of light style, user can select any mode from mode 0 to
	mode 7 according to actual need.

3.3.5 Language

->ENGLISH		
中文		

Language Select Chinese or English.

3.3.6 Factory Reset



FACTORY	Select "YES" or "NO". Select "YES" to restore default settings.
RESET	
SAVE IP	Select "YES" or "NO". Select "YES" to restore default settings, but keep the
RESET	IP.

Chapter 4 Control by XPOSE

4.1 Software Installation

Environment Requirements:

Processor: 1 GHz or above 32 bit or 64 bit processor Memory: 2 GB or more Graphics: Support DirectX 9 128M or above (open AERO effect) Hard disk space: Above 16G (primary partitions, NTFS format) Monitor: Resolution must be 1280×720 pixel or above (it can not display normally if the resolution is lower than 1280×720)

Operating system: Windows 7 or above (full version, not Ghost version or compact version)



Double click ________ icon, it will pop-up the installer language box, select the language, for example, select "English", and click "OK" to confirm.



Click "Next" to install:



Select "Browse..." to select the XPOSE software install location:

Choose Install Location	
Choose the folder in which to install	XPOSE 1.2.6.0.
Setup will install XPOSE 1.2.6.0 in the Browse and select another folder. Cl	e following folder. To install in a different folder, dick lick Install to start the installation.
Destination Folder	
Destination Folder C:\Program Files (x86)\XPOSE\	Browse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files (x86)\XPOSE\ Space required: 251.4MB	Browse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files (x86)\XPOSE\ Space required: 251.4MB Space available: 42.2GB	Browse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files (x86)\XPOSE\ Space required: 251.4MB Space available: 42.2GB http://www.rgblink.com	Browse

Note

User should get the rights in "Roles Management" when install the software to disk C if the system is Windows 7 or above.

Click "Install":

nstalling		
Please wait while XPOSE 1.2.6.0	is being installed.	(?
Skipped: libmux_asf_plugin.dll		
Skipped: libvod_rtsp_plugin.dll		*
Skipped: libxml_plugin.dll		
Output folder: C:\Program File	s (x86)\XPOSE\plugins\mmx	
Skipped: libi420_rgb_mmx_plu	gin.dll	
Skipped: libi420_yuy2_mmx_pl	ugin.dll	
Skipped: libi422_yuy2_mmx_pl	ugin.dll	
Skipped: libmemcpymmx_plugir	n.dll	
Output folder: C:\Program File	s (x86)\XPOSE\plugins\mmxext	
Skipped: libmemcpymmxext_pl	ugin.dll	
Output folder: C:\Program File	s (x86)\XPOSE\plugins\mux	+
tp://www.rablink.com		
	Rack Next >	Cancel

Click "Finish" and is ready to run the XPOSE management software:



4.2 Software Operation

4.2.1 Login to the Software



Double click the icon **CROSE** on the desktop. Log in interface will be enter after opening, the

user name is Admin, and there is no password, select "X2", and enter into the software by clicking "Login".



If user want to change the language to Chinese, click the drop down arrow after "Language" and select "Chinese", as shown in the figure below, then click "Login" to enter into the software.

XPOSE		
	(CONT)	
User Name	Admin	
Password		
Device Typ	e VENUS X2	
Language	English	
	中文 LAIL	Logni

XPOSE management software interface is shown as follows.

VENUS X2									
≭5 <mark>0</mark> 5€	Q Search	Output Settings	Operation Mode	Input settings	System Settings	Slave Unit	Access Control	[-> log out	
			Search						

XPOSE management software contains the functions including: web links, search, output settings, operation mode, input settings, slave unit, access control and system settings. In the following parts, we will introduce these in detail.

4.2.2 Connect the Device

First, set up the device IP, and ensure the IP of the computer and device is on the same network segment. Connect the XPOSE management software to the computer with the network cable and power up the device. Users can find the IP address of the device on its LCD screen after initializing.

Then, click the shortcut "Search" on the operation interface.



Then it will search the device, and show the device name, device number and IP after search, as shown in the figure below:



Finally, click the device to connect, as shown in the figure below:

3



The software will automatically synchronize after connection, as shown in the figure below:



4.2.3 Output Settings

VENUS X2			Contract Name of Street, or	Contraction of the local division of the loc					
x₽ <mark>0</mark> 5€°	Q Search	Output Settings	Operation Mode	Input settings	System Settings	Slave Unit	Access Control	[-> log out	
			Output S	etting		D	5 Setting		
			Test Pa	ttern			OSD		

Click the "Output Settings", and enter to the interface as follows:

Output Setting, DE Setting, Test pattern and OSD are included in output settings, specific as follows:

Output Setting

Click the "Output Setting", and pop-up window as follows:

Soutput Setting	X
Output Format customize Width Height Freq	720x480@60i ♥ 0 0 0
Genlock Genlock Status Input Format Output Format Input Source	Setting OFF HDMI

Output: Click the drop down arrow after the format, and select the output resolution in the pull-down menus according to actual need.

Format: The width, height and frequency can be set if select "**Custom**" in "Format". Click "**Setting**" to confirm.

Genlock: Enable or disable the Genlock function by sliding the Genlock switch. If select "ON", the output resolution will be same with the resolution that selected. HDMI or BNC can be selected in

"Input Source" by sliding the switch.

DE Setting

Click the "DE Setting", and pop-up window as follows:



Brightness: The brightness adjustment range is between 0~128. Click "Set" to confirm.

De: User can select one port or all ports, and enable the De function by sliding the De Switch. The settings for De include X, Y, width, height, line polarity and scene polarity. Vertical spliting can be selected in "Output Port".

Test Pattern

Click the "Test Pattern", and pop-up window as follows:



Output: User can select any board among the four boards.

Color Choice: TP, colour bar and pure colour can be selected.

Red, Green, Blue: If select "Pure Colour", red, green and blue can be adjusted, the adjustment range is between 0~255.

Click "Set" to confirm.

OSD

Click the "OSD", and pop-up window as follows:

🖙 OSD 💌
One Output mode Muilti Output mode
Output 1 🔽 OSD OFF Close All
X: 0 Y: 0 W: 1920 H: 10 H
Font Alpha Font Color #000000
BG Alpha BG Color #FFFFFF
Font: 宋体 🔽 Font Size: 10 Pt
Font Type: Normal
Input Information
Scrolling Speed 1 🛉 OSD Scroll No Scroll 🔽 Set
Save Clear Apply Cancel

Output Mode: One output mode or more output mode can be selected. In one output mode, user need to enable the OSD function and select the output first. The operations are as follows: **Size and Position Adjustment:** The size and position can be adjusted by setting \times , Y, W and H. **Font Setting:** The font, font size, font type and font color can be set. Use can also select font alpha.

BG Alpha: Can set the background color or background alpha.

Input Information: Input the information that will display in the box.

Scrolling Speed: The scrolling speed can be set, and the adjustment range is between 1~16.

OSD Scroll: Can select no scroll, left scroll and right scroll.

Click "Save" and "Apply" after setting.

4.2.4 Operation Mode

VEIVO3 X2						and the second second			
⋧₽ <mark>⋑</mark> ⋸⋐	Q Search	Output Settings	Operation Mode	Input settings	System Settings	Slave Unit	Access Control	[-> log out	
			Videowall M	ode		Matri	x Mode		
									l
			Preview Mc	de		3D	-Mode		

Click the "Operation Mode", and enter to the interface as follows:

Videowall Mode, Matrix Mode, Preview Mode and 3D-Mode are included in operation mode, specific as follows:

Videowall Mode

XPO:	bE					and the second			and the second s		-
		1	EDID Loop	Sync Load Scr	pt Save Script Factor	Reset Output Card	Shortcuts		Alpha Time Black Scene	OFF	
М	onitor Signal		Bank1	Bank2	Bank3	Bank4 B	ank5 Bank	<6 Bank7	Auto Take	ON) -
	1: No Input	💽	Monitor 1		Monitor 2		Monitor 3		Moni	Take	
	2: No Input		x:0 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:1920 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:3840 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:5760 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		
	3: No Input		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		
	4: No Input										
	5: No Input										
	6: 1920x1080@25	🧧									-
	7: No Input		Monitor 5		Monitor 6		Monitor 7		Monitor 8		
	8: No Input		w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200		E
٢	13: No Input		HDMI		HDMI		HDMI		HDMI		
۲	14: No Input										E Star
0	15: 1920×1080@60										Ð
0	16: No Input										
			Monitor 9 x:0 y:2400		Monitor 10 x:1920 y:2400		Monitor 11 x:3840 y:2400		Monitor 12 x:5760 y:2400		
			w:1920 h:1200 r:0		w:1920 h:1200 r:0		w:1920 h:1200 r:0		w:1920 h:1200 r:0		auto
			HDMI		HDMI		HDMI		HDMI	Adap	ptive
			Manitas 12		Manitar 14		Manifas 15		Monitor 16		
			x:0 y:3600		x:1920 y:3600		x:3840 y:3600		x:5760 y:3600		
			r:0		r:0		r:0		r:0		
			HUMI		HUMI		HUMI		HUHI	Monther	
										Laver	
										H total M total	
			×	+ 32767	+ 32767	0-65535	H 0-65535	OK	1		
			^	- 32101	- 32101	0 00000	0 00000	UK			

Click the "Videowall Mode", and enter to the interface as follows:

Signal List

The signal list is shown as follows:



It displays the input module type, the quantity of inputs and input format. Right click the input for the following settings:

Change Name: Select "New Name", and input the new name, click "OK" after setting.



Refresh Signals: Right click the input and select "Refresh Signals". If there is signal, it will show the input format, or it will show "No Input".

LOGO: Right click HDMI/DVI input, and select "LOGO", it will enter to the LOGO menu items.

E LOGO	×
Logo capture	Hide Logo
Display Logo	Live/Freeze

LOGO capture: Select the LOGO, there are 10 groups of LOGO. The image is frozen when capture LOGO.

Hide LOGO: Select "Hide LOGO", the LOGO will be hidden.

Display LOGO: Select the number of "Display LOGO".

Live/Freeze: Select "Live/Freeze", the image is frozen. Cancel it, the image is live.

USB Player: Right click the USB input, and select "USB Player", it will enter to the USB Player interface, including movie and picture, default play the USB movie.

Index	File Name	Time
1	ISE1.avi	00:00:00
2	張靚穎 feat Big Sean.mp4	00:00:00
3	Taylor_SwiftYou_Belong_Wit	00:00:00
4	功夫熊猫 HD.mov	00:01:17
5	12_hancock.mov	00:00:00
6	ise 6.avi	00:00:00
熊猫HD.	mov	00:00:

USB movie player setting: Can select play in order, random, single cycle and all cycle, switch to pre or next, pause or play, and read the movie name, progress bar and time.

USB picture play time: Click the picture, it will display the setting interface, default the time is 0s. Set the switch time, and click "Set".

USB picture player setting: Can select play in order, random, single cycle and all cycle, and switch to pre or next, pause or play.

USB Upgrade: Put the file in the form of MERGE.bin to the USB disk root directory, and connect to the USB input. Right click the USB input, and select "USB Upgrade" to begin to upgrade USB. (Note: upgrade is only for the USB port that connected, user need to upgrade the four USB ports respectively.

Set Input Property: Right click the input and select "Set Input Property", it will enter to the interface as follows:

Property Set Form	×
Scale	
X 0 Y 0 Width 0 Height 0	
Crop	1
Left 0 Top 0 Width 0 Height 0	
Display Mode	
Mirror OFF Bypass Mode OFF	
Alaba O Sharanaga O	
Brightness 0 0 Contrast	0
Saturation 0	
Color Temp	
Red 🗊 🗩 0 Green 🗊 🗩 0	
Blue 🗅 💭 0	
Reset	

Scale: Set the X, Y, width and height.

Crop: Crop the left, top, width and height. Display Mode: Select "Live" or "Freeze". Mirror: Enable or disable the mirror function, default "OFF". Bypass Mode: Enable or disable the bypass mode. When select "ON", the output format will be the same with the input format. Alpha: Set the alpha, the adjustment range is 0~128. Sharpness: Set the sharpness, the adjustment range is 0~100. Brightness: Set the brightness, the adjustment range is 0~100. Contrast: Set the contrast, the adjustment range is 0~100. Saturation: Set the saturation, the adjustment range is 0~100. Color Term: Set the color temp (red, green and blue), the adjustment range is 0~100. Reset: Select "Reset", the input property will be recover to factory setting.

Output Setting

Click "Monitor" shortcut Monitor , it will enter

, it will enter the interface as follows:

XPOSE			_			and the second second	and the second of			States of P		
			ſ		A A	; 🗳 (P		Alpha Time	() 1.0se	ec
			E	DID Loop	Sync Load Scr	ipt Save Script Factor	Reset Output Card	Shortcuts		Black Scene	e 💽 OFF	
Monitor		Signal	<	Bank1	Bank2	Bank3	Bank4 B	ank5 Ba	nk6 Bank7	Auto Take		
•				Monitor 1		Monitor 2		Monitor 3		Moni	Take	3
				x:0 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:1920 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:3840 y:0 w:1920 h:1200		x:5760 y:0 w:1920 h:1200	[
				r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		ß
												out1
			8									
			•									
				Monitor 5		Monitor 6		Monitor 7	-	Monitor 8		auto
				x:0 y:1200 w:1920 h:1200		x:1920 y:1200 w:1920 h:1200		x:3840 y:1200 w:1920 h:1200		x:5760 y:1200 w:1920 h:1200		
				r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		
				Monitor 9		Monitor 10		Monitor 11		Monitor 12		
				x:0 y:2400 w:1920 h:1200		x:1920 y:2400 w:1920 h:1200		x:3840 y:2400 w:1920 h:1200		x:5760 y:2400 w:1920 h:1200		
Ð				r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		
Quick Split	a	IFF										
H total	768	0										
V total	480	0		Monitor 13		Monitor 14		Monitor 15		Monitor 16		
Top border	0			w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 y:3600 w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200		
Bottom Bor	der 0			r:0 HDMI		r:0 HDMI		HDMI		HDMI		
Left Border	0											
Row	u U	_										
Column	4	_										total
		ОК		X	± 32767 Y	± 32767 W	0-65535	H 0-65535	R Rotation	ок		
-							1	~	Tar- in Se			

Split Mode: Default quick split "OFF". User can enable the quick split function by sliding the switch to "ON". LED type and LCD type can also be selected by sliding the monitor type switch, specific as follows:

LED Type: Default LED type. In LED type, user can custom the H total, V total, row and column, as shown in the figure below:



LCD Type: Slide the monitor type switch, and select "LCD Type". Besides H total, V total, row and column, user can custom the top border, bottom border, left border and right border in LCD type, as shown in the figure below:

Quick split	OFF
H Total	7680
V Total	4320
Top border	0
Bottom border	0
Left border	0
Right border	0
Row	4
Column	4
	ОК

Note

Top border and bottom border, left border and right border are changed equivalently. For example, if set top border as 100, bottom border will be changed to 100 automatically, and if set left border as 200, right border will be changed to 200 automatically.

For example, set the top border, bottom border, left border and right border as 100, as shown in the figure below:

Monitor 1	Monitor 2	Monitor 3	Monitor 4
x:0 y:0	x:1920 y:0	x:3840 y:0	x:5760 y:0
w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	x:1920 h:1080
r:0	r:0	r:0	r:0
HDMI	HDMI	HDMI	HDMI
Monitor 5	Monitor 6	Monitor 7	Monitor 8
x:0 y:1080	x:1920 y:1080	x:3840 y:1080	x:5760 y:1080
w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080
r:0	r:0	r:0	r:0
HDMI	HDMI	HDMI	HDMI

Close monitor: Click the icon on the top right corner of the monitor to close one monitor,

or click the shortcut

×

on the right side of the interface to close all monitors.

Reset monitor: User can reset the monitor by clicking the shortcut the interface.

on the right side of

Swap monitor: User can swap the monitor by clicking the shortcut on the right side of the interface, as shown in the figure below.



Auto tile: User can enable or disable the auto tile function by clicking the auto tile shortcut

on the right side of the interface. If select auto tile "ON', the layer will automatically snap to the output grid when move the layer to the position within the threshold value.

Monitor Size and Position Setting: Move the mouse to the lower right brink of the monitor, and press the left key of the mouse. Move the mouse to the suitable position and release the mouse. But this method can only adjust the size and location roughly, if an accurate adjustment is needed, select the monitor, and set the X, Y, width and height in the bottom of the interface.

Х	2470	Y	2190	Width	1024	Height	768	

Monitor Size changed equivalently: Select any monitor, for example, select monitor 1, and adjust the size. Click this monitor, then press button C and don't let go, select the monitor that will set, the size of the selected monitor will be changed to the same size of monitor 1, as shown in the figure below:

Monitor 1	Monitor 2	Monitor 3	Monitor 4
x:0 y:0	x:1920 y:0	x:3840 y:0	x:5760 y:0
w:1589 h:767	w:1589 h:767	w:1589 h:767	w:1589 h:767
1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
Monitor 5	Monitor 6	Monitor 7	Monitor 8
x:0 y:1080	x:1920 y:1080	x:3840 y:1080	x:5760 y:1080
w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080
r:0	r:0	r:0	r:0
HDMI	HDMI	HDMI	HDMI
Monitor 9	Monitor 10	Monitor 11	Monitor 12
x:0 y:2160	x:1920 y:2160	x:3840 y:2160	x:5760 y:2160
w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080
r:0	r:0	r:0	r:0
HDMI	HDMI	HDMI	HDMI
Monitor 13	Monitor 14	Monitor 15	Monitor 16
x:0 y:3240	x:1920 y:3240	x:3840 y:3240	x:5760 y:3240
w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080	w:1920 h:1080
r:0	r:0	r:0	r:0
HDMI	HDMI	HDMI	HDMI

Rotation: Select the monitor, and set the rotation as 0°, 90°, 180° and 270° in the bottom of the interface. Click "**OK**" to confirm. As shown in the figure below:



Right click the monitor can also rotate the monitor.

Output Area Size Setting: Move the mouse to the output area and slide the mouse wheel, the output area size can be zoom in and out.

Layer Setting

New Layer: In output screen zone of controlling software, press the left mouse key and drag on the intended output screen to cover the whole current screen. And the below interface will be displayed. A layer can also be opened by double clicking the left signal source to be shown on the window.

📥 XPO	SE								and the second se				- 0	×
		ſ		F	Ê	Å	0		Ð			淡入/出时间 🕞	1.0秒	
		EC	DID 「轮巡」	同步	载入脚本	保存脚本	恢复出厂	输出卡设置	快捷键			黑场	•×	
5	記示器 信号	<	场景1	场景2		场景3	场景4		场景5	场景6	场景7	自动Take	Я	5
	1: 1920x1080@60	💽										Cut	Take	
	2: No Input		·			-								
	3: No Input		Signal 1 s.C. yt0 wr1268			Monitor 2 x:1919 y:0	(Monitor 3 x:3841 y:0		Monitor 4 x:5760 y:0			
	4: No Input		Ordaniz, r.O	Signal 2 x667 y300		w:1919 h:1 r:0	193		w:1919 h:1193 r:0		w:1919 h:1193 r:0			
	5: No Input	🔋	HDM	wr1177 br894 Order.3		HDMI			HDMI		HDMI			
	6: 1920x1080@30	· 🍳			Signal 3 x1245 y/700 w1228 ht841									
	7: No Input				Ordeo.4									
	8: No Input		Monit x0 v	or 5 200			0		Monitor 7 x:3840 y:1200		Monitor 8 x:5760 v:1200			P
۲	13: No Input		w:192	h:1200		r.0			w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200			
۲	14: No Input		HDMI			HDMI			HDMI		HDMI			×
۲	15: 1920x1080@60													Ē
۲	16: No Input													5
			Monit	pr 9		Monitor 10	100		Monitor 11		Monitor 12			
			w:192	h:1200		w:1920 h:1	1200		w:1920 h:1200		w:1920 h:1200			auto
			HDMI			HDMI			HDMI		HDMI			6
														ON
			Monit	or 13		Monitor 14	1		Monitor 15		Monitor 16			
			x:0 y: w:192	1600) h:1200		x:1920 y:30 w:1920 h:1	600 1200		x:3840 y:3600 w:1920 h:1200		x:5760 y:3600 w:1920 h:1200			
			HDMI			HDMI			HDMI		HDMI			
													显示器	
			No.						- 20				国层	
		Sig	gnal 3 🛛 🖽	と标 1245	4	从坐标 70	10	宽 12	28 高	841	确定	更多		
									~					1

Adjust Layer: Two ways can change the size and location of the opened layer:

a. Drag the opened layer by mouse. The details are: move the mouse to the brink of the opened layer, when the mouse shows"<—>", press the left key of the mouse and drag the window to a suitable size and then release the mouse. Or move the mouse to the lower right of the opened layer, press the left key of the mouse and drag the window to a suitable size and then release the mouse. Move the mouse to the opened layer and press the left key of the mouse and move the mouse, then the layer will be moved, release the mouse when moved to the suitable location. But this method can only adjust the size and location roughly, if an accurate adjustment is needed, the second method can be used.

b. Select the layer to be adjusted, and set the X, Y, width and height in the bottom of the interface.



Layer Property Setting: Select the layer to be adjusted, click the More shortcut "<u>More</u>" in the bottom of the interface, and enter the interface as follows:
Property	x
Scale	
X 225 Y 371 Width 757 Height 579	
Сгор	
Left 0 Top 0 Width 1920 Height 1080	
Display Mode Uve	
Mirror OFF	
Alpha O Sharpness O O	0
Brightness 0 0 Contrast 0 0	1
Color Temp	
Red 🗘 🛁 0 Green 🗘 🛁 0	
Blue 🖸 🗾 0	
Reset Set	
	— ,

Scale: Set the X, Y, width and height.

Crop: Crop the left, top, width and height.

Display Mode: Select "Live" or "Freeze".

Mirror: Enable or disable the mirror function, default "OFF".

Bypass Mode: Enable or disable the bypass mode. When select "ON", the output format will be the same with the input format.

Alpha: Set the alpha, the adjustment range is 0~128.

Sharpness: Set the sharpness, the adjustment range is 0~100.

Brightness: Set the brightness, the adjustment range is 0~100.

Contrast: Set the contrast, the adjustment range is 0~100.

Saturation: Set the saturation, the adjustment range is 0~100.

Color Term: Set the color temp (red, green and blue), the adjustment range is 0~100.

Reset: Select "Reset", the input property will be recover to factory setting.

H264 Video Preview

Select "System Settings" and click "Streaming IP & Power On Setting", Set "ON" for "H264 Display", as shown in the figure below:



Then enter to the videowall mode, the bottom of the interface will display the H264 video, as shown in the figure below, which is for preview.

XPOS	E			the second second								9 X .
				Sync Lased Scr	pt Save Scrip	x Factory Reset OutC	of Set ShortKe			Alpha time BlackScene	15	
Mo	onitor	Signal	Bank1	Bank2	Bank3	Bank4	Bank5	Bank6	Bank7	AutoTake	ON	<u> </u>
	1: 1920x816									Cut	Take	
-	2: 1920x816	••••	Monitor 1		Monitor 2		Moni	tor 3	Mor	nitor 4		
	3: No Input	****)	x:0 Signal 1 w:1 x:218 v:124		x:1920 y: w:1920 h:	0 1080	x:38 w:19	40 y:0 20 h:1080	x:5	760 y:0 1920 h:1080		
	4: No Input		r:0 w:1264 h Sign	al 1	O		r:0	r.	r:0	MT		
	9: No Input		x:75	4 y:424					21000			
	11: No Input		Orde	r:2 Signal 1 x:1218 y:75	2							P*1
0 0	12: No Input		Monitor 5 x:0 y:1080 w:1920 h:1080 r:0 HDMI	w:1215 h:92 Order:3	19 19720 of 19720 of 19730 of 1973 1973	1080 1080	Moni x:38 w:19 r:0 HDM	tor 7 40 y:1080 120 h:1080 I	Mor x:5 w:1 r:0 HDI	nitor 8 760 y:1080 1920 h:1080 MI		
			Monitor 9 x:0 y:2160 w:1920 h:1080 r:0 NULL		Monitor 10 x:1920 y: w:1920 h: r:0 NULL	2160 1080	Moni x:38 w:19 r:0 NULL	tor 11 40 y:2160 20 h:1080	Mor x:5 w:1 r:0 NUI	nitor 12 760 y:2160 1920 h:1080 LL		
			Monitor 13 x:0 y:3240 w:1920 h:1080 r:0		Monitor 14 x:1920 y: w:1920 h: r:0	3240 1080	Moni x:38 w:19 r:0	tor 15 40 y:3240 920 h:1080	Mor x:5 w:1 r:0	nitor 16 760 y:3240 1920 h:1080	Arter Arter Historik v to	
			X	32767 Y	± 32767	W 0~6553	5 H	0-65535	ок			
		<	SIGNAL: VIDEO:U	sB,	SIGN	AL:2 D:USE	SIGN	AL:3 O:USB	SIGNAL:4 VIDEO:U	ŧ SB		>

Drag the signal to the H264 video area, the preview signal will be switched, as shown in the figure below:

XPOS												
		Í	1 10 8		, e		· 8			Alpha tin	ne or mana 15	
			EDID Loop Syr	nc Load Scri	ipt Save Sc	ript Factory Reset OutCa	rd Set ShortKe	rx.		BlackSce	ne 💽 orr	
М	onitor Signa	a 🕻	Bank1 B				Bank5			AutoTake		ON 🔵 🕴
	1: 1920x816	🧿									rt Toke	
	2: 1920x816	146	Monitor 1		Monitor 7	2	Moni	itor 3		Monitor 4		
	3: No Input	- 223	x:0 Signal 1		x:1920	10 10 10 10 10	x:38	140 y:0		x:5760 y:0		
	4: No Input		r:0 w:1264 h Signal 1		0	111000	r:0	ALO 11-1000		r:0		
	9: No Input		HDFOrder:1 x:754 y	424	DMI		HDM	II.)		HDMI		
	10: No Input	() en 📍	Order:2	Signal 1								
	11: No Input		Monitor 5	w:1215 h:92	29		Moni	itor 7		Manitor R		
	12: No Input		x:0 y:1080	Order:3		:1080	x:38	40 y:1080		x:5760 y:1080		Ľ
			v:1920 h:1080 r:0			1:1080	w:15	920 h:1080		r:0 h:1080		23
			HDMI		100302		HDM	II.		HDMI		-62
												ل <u>ت</u> ا
			Monitor 0		Manifor 1	10	Mon	Nor 11		Manitar 12		
			:0 y:2160		x:1920	y:2160	x:38	40 y:2160		x:5760 y:2160		mite
			v1920 h:1080		w:1920 r:0	h:1080	w:15	220 h:1080		w:1920 h:1080 r:0		
			NUL		NULL		NULI	-		NULL		
										NAMES OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIPTIONO		
			x:0 y:324		x:1920	(4 7:3240	x:38	140 y:3240		x:5760 y:3240		
			w:1920 h:1080 r:0		w:1920 r:0	h:1080	w:19 r:0	920 h:1080		w:1920 h:1080 r:0		tátál -
			× ± 3276	7 Y	± 32767	W 0-65535	н	0-65535	ОК	0100		
					0	A. B.						
		- (SIGNAL:1 VIDEO:USB		VID	NAL:2	SIGN	AL:3 O:USB	SIGN	IAL:4 O:USB		
					alla a	100						
-												

Click the arrow on both sides of the H264 video, the groups of the preview signals will be switched, as shown in the figure below:

and the second				
	SIGNAL:6 VIDEO:NULL	SIGNAL:7 VIDEO:NULL	SIGNAL:8 VIDEO:NULL	>

Take

The take interface is shown as the figure below:



Set the alpha time, and the adjustment range is 0~10S.

Slide the black scene switch to enable or disable the black function. Auto take on is the default state. If select black scene and auto take on, the preview image will black or seamless switch to LED display instantaneously.

Click "Cut" or "Take", the preview will be cut or seamless switch to LED display.

EDID

Click the EDID shortcut " EDID

Choose board type Input Card

", and pop-up window as follows:

The special display project or LED display application would like to require special resolution settings to meet the requirement. Select the input or output board to read and write the EDID. As shown in the figure below:

Read control	
Read EDID	Read
Write control	
Write HDMI	Write
Write VGA	Write
Write File	Write
Cutomize setting	
Template 🛛 🛛	IGBDVI
Width	
Height	
Frequency	
	Sat

Loop

Ð

Click the loop shortcut " , and pop-up window as follows:



Slide the loop switch to enable or disable the loop function for the bank. If select "ON", the bank play time can be set.

Sync



Click the sync shortcut "Sync " to synchronize the current data.

Load Script



Click the load script shortcut "Load Script", user can load the data from the computer.

Save Script



Click the save script shortcut "Save Script", user can save the data to the computer.

Factory Reset



Click the factory reset shortcut "Factory Reset" to reset to factory settings.

Out Card Set



Click the out card set shortcut "OutCard Set", and pop-up window as follows:

User Manual

Dutput Ca	ard				
	())	(11)	« IIII »	()	
	()	(11)	(11)	(IIII))	

Click any output, and pop-up window as follows:

🗧 OutputBoa	rd Settings			×
Output:1				
x	0	Y	0	
Width	1920	Height	1080	
Rotate	No Rotate			
			Set	
Advand	ced Setting			

X, Y, width, height, rotate can be set.

If click "Advanced Setting", pop-up window as follow:

OutputBo	ard Settings	_	×
Output:1			
×	0	Y	0
Width	1920	Height	1080
Rotate	No Rotate		
			Set
Advar	ced Setting		
Scale			
x	0	Y	0
Width	0	Height	0
Crop			
X	0	Y	0
Width	0	Height	0
			Set

In advanced setting, scale and crop can be set. Not recommended to use "Advanced Setting". Short Key



Click the shortcut "ShortKey", and pop-up window as follows:



Use shortcut key to operate fast and easily.

Matrix Mode

Click the "Matrix Mode", and pop-up window as follows:



Click "OK", and the system will synchronize the data, about 5 seconds later, it will enter the interface as follows:



In matrix mode, any operations are unavailable except signal selection, bank selection, alpha time and black scene setting.

Default source 1 to monitor 1, source 2 to monitor 2, and so on. Select the signal, and drag it to the source that will set. For example, set signal 3 for source 1, as shown in the figure below:

XP	DSE													00-8-
			F	0	E	Ê	Å	0		P			茨入/出时间 。	— 6.2秒
			EDID	16.85	RØ	R 入期本	保存算本	恢复出广	输出卡说展	快速網			黑场	
1	578 信	博		场景1	场最2		适册3	场景	4	场景5	场银6	场景7	自动Take	π 🕥
0	1:852x460												Cut	Take
	2:1920x816						r	69			10000			
0	3: No Input						_	0185						
-	4: No Input											-		
	9:1920x1080@6	60						047						
	10: No Input							100000			Synrady.			
	11: No Input													
	12: No Input							C#1			E.vel			
							Ĩ	c#+			-			
												-		
											8.00			
							F		_		-			
								641			1.14P			
							F				10000	fi l		

Source 1 will be switched to signal 3, click source 1, then click "TAKE" icon

will be switched to the corresponding monitor. Connect the signal to the corresponding output after setting.

Preview Mode

Click the "Preview Mode", and pop-up window as follows:



Click "OK", the system will synchronize the data, and it will finish about 5 seconds later, click "OK", it will enter the interface as follows:

Preview Mode & Preview Ports Se	tting 🚬 🔀	Π		0 X
Preview Mode Multiview One image Two Image Three Image	KCH PST Output P4 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P4 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P4 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6 Output P6	Save Script, Factory Reset Output Card Shortcuts Bank4 Bank5 Bank6	Alpha Time 1.0se Black Scene Bank7 Auto Take Cut	
Five Image Six Image	Output Po Output Pa Output Po Output Po		PGM	0
Connection Diagram	PGM PST			
	X ±32767 Y ±32767	W 0-65535 H 0-65535	Monitor Layer H total V OK	

Select the preview mode, and select multiview or splice multiview, then select the preview image according to actual need. User can select max three outputs in one output card.

The connection diagram area will show the corresponding splice guidance figure, as shown in the figure below:



Click "Ok", the settings will be displayed in the monitor, as shown in the figure below. Click "Take" or "Cut" in "Take" box to seamless switch or cut the preview signal to the LED display.

Х2

Contraction of the second seco	SE CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR		Preview Set		Sync	Load Script	Save Scrip	ot Factory Resel	Output Care	Shortcuts			1	Alpha Time 🚓 Black Scene	1.0	sec
Mo	onitor Signal	<	Bank1	Bank2		Bank3		ank4	Bank5	Ba		Bank7		Auto Take		
	1: No Input	•												Cut	Take	
	2: No Input															-
	3: No Input															1
	4: No Input	8														
	5: No Input															c
	6: 852x460@60	•			DC	т						D	СМ			
	7: No Input										201					
	8: No Input	Sig	inal1:1						M	onitor:4	4		1			e
9	13: No Input	x:0) y:0						X:	0 y:0			1			
e	14: No Input	W:	1920 h	:1200					W	1920	h:120	00	1			
.	15: 1920x1080@60	Or	der:1						H	IMC						
•	16: No Input															
													÷			-
													1.			aut
													1			.
													1			
													1.			
_															Laver	
		_	×	+ 32767	v	+ 32767	W	0=65535	н	0=65535		אר				
			~	- 52101		- 32101		3 00030		00000		57C				

Note

The adjustment for monitor is available when there is no any layer in PST or PGM window.

4.2.5 Input Settings

x **ె**ల్లెం∈ి Q • • ÷ **.**R. 1 Slave Unit Search Output Settin Access Contro

Click the "Input Settings", and enter the interface as follows:

[→ DSK Settings Source Backup Source Merge 4K Input Set

DSK settings, source backup, source merge and H264 input settings are included in input settings, specific as follows:

DSK Settings

Click the "DSK Settings", and pop-up window as follows:

Input port Input 1	Preset User	
DSK OFF		
Model	Alpha	i.
Red Max	Red Min	
Green Max	Green Min	
Blue Max	Blue Min	
		Set

Select DSK ON, as shown in figure LIDSK ON, then set the input ports, including preset

selection, custom mode, alpha and color setting. Click "Set" to confirm.

Source Backup

Click the "Source Backup", and pop-up window as follows:

Source Backup				l	X
Source Back	dr				
Source Backup1	Source 1	⊽	Source Backup2	Source 2	
Source Backup3	Source 3	V	Source Backup4	Source 4	$\overline{\nabla}$
Source Backup5	Source 5	V	Source Backup6	Source 6	V
Source Backup7	Source 7	▽	Source Backup8	Source 8	V
				Set	

Enable the hot backup function, as shown in figure Hot Backup, and set the backup signal for

Hot Backup 1 to Hot Backup 8. It will switch to the backup signal if the signal is interrupted.

Source Merge

Click the "Source Merge", and pop-up window as follows:



The S-HDMI input optional module support signal merger. Click any valid input board, for example,

select Board 2, then select the merger mode, for example, select , as shown in the

figure below:



Click any layer, then click any source, and the layer source can be switched, as shown in the figure below:

Source Merge						X
Board 1	Board 2	Board 3	Board 4			
1920x1080@60						
Source 2 X :0 Y :0 W :640 H :1080		Source 1 X :640 Y :0 W :640 H :1080		Source 1 X :1280 Y W :640 H	:0 :1080	
Source 1	1920×1080@60	Scale	x 0 🕀 Y	r o 💿 w	640 🖹 F	1080 🔮
Source 2	1920x1080@60	Crop	< n 🖻	(0 🖻 w	1920 🖹 🗄	2160
Source 3	1920×1080@60	Ciop			1920	2100
Source 4	1920×1080@60					Set

User can also scale or crop the layer.

H264 Input Settings

Click the "H264 Input Settings", and pop-up window as follows:

H264 Input Set					×
Input Board	Input	Board 1	∇		
Input Port	Input	Port 1	∇		
🔲 Ip Set					
Ip Address	192	· 168	• 1	· 136	
Netmask	255	· 255	255	• 1	
Gateway	192	· 168	· 1	· 10	
DNS	192	· 168	• 0	• 0	
Мас	11	22 · 33	• 44 •	55 · 66	
Network U	JRL Set				
Network URL					
			_	(Catting and	
				Sec	

Select the input board and input port.

IP Set: Select "Ip Set", and Ip Address, Netmask, Gateway, DNS and Mac can be edited.

Network URL Set: Select "Network URL Set", it will read the URL address automatically, user can also input the network URL.

4.2.6 System Settings

VENUS X2						A CONTRACTOR			- C - X
౫ ౽ౢౢం౾౬ౢ	Q Search	Output Settings	Operation Mode	Input settings	System Settings	Slave Unit	Access Control	log out	
		Connect Setting			IP Settings			System Information	
		Streaming IP Power On Setting Fan Control			Factory Reset			Streaming Setting	
		Help							

Click the "System Settings", and enter the interface as follows:

Connect Setting, IP settings, System information, Streaming IP Power on Settin Fan Control, Factory Reset and Streaming Setting are included in system settings, specific as follows:

Connect Setting

Click the "Connet Setting", and pop-up window as follows:



Select the serial connect and Ethernet connect, the software will search all the devices if not select "Search by this configuration".

If select "Serial Connect" and "Search by this configuration", the software will search all the devices with corresponding serial port.

If select "Ethernet Connect" and "Search by this configuration", the software will search all the devices with corresponding IP.

Serial Connect			
COM Port	COM1	_	۲,
Ba Set T	he UDP Communication	n Success!	
C	ОК		
0	configuration		
Search by this			

System Information

Click the "System Information", and pop-up window as follows:

		Vorcion	Info		
		version	1110		
Software Vers	ion	1	.2.7.0		
Model Numbe	r				
Serial Number	r				
IP Address					
MAC Address					
Comm Board	Firmware				
Output Board	Firmware				
1:	2:	3:		4:	
Input Board F	irmware				
1:	2:	3:		4:	

Display the device version information. Including device model, serial number, IP address, firmware version, etc.

IP Settings

Click the "IP Settings", and pop-up window as follows:



Default "Auto get ip address". Users can also set IP address, mask and gateway manually. This is usually used if one computer control some devices or remote control. It takes effect after reboot the software if change IP through network.

Factory Reset

Click the "Factory Reset", and pop-up window as follows:

XPOSE	×
Please select the functions wi Remove the LOGO Remove EDID	hich need factory reset
Cancel	ОК

Select "Remove the LOGO", and click "**OK**", the LOGO will be removed. Select "Remove EDID", and click "**OK**", the EDID will be removed.

Streaming IP & Power On Setting & Fan Setting

Click the "Streaming IP Power On Setting Fan Control", and pop-up window as follows:

Streaming IP & Power-on delay time & Fan setting	×
H264 display: OFF	
IP:	
	Set
H.264 Resolution 850x480	
H.264 Frame Rate 20 🗸	
Refresh Rate: 10 S	
	Set
Time-Lapse Power On:	s
	Set
Auto Fan Control: OFF	
Fan Speed:	<u></u>
	Set

H264 Display: Enable or disable the H264 display function. If select "ON", the interface will display the H.264 video when enter to the operation mode, which is for preview.

IP: Set the IP address of H264 video, click "Set" after setting.

H.264 Resolution: Set the resolution of H.264.

H.264 Frame Rate: Set the frame rate of H.264.

Time-Lapse Power On: The adjustment range is 0~255, click "Set" after setting.

Auto Fan Control/Fan Speed: OFF/ON to enable or disable auto fan control. If disable it, Fan Speed can be adjusted manually. The rang of Fan Speed is 0-100.

Streaming Setting

Click the "Streaming Setting ", and enter the default mode of Streaming Setting and pop-up window as follows:



Users can choose any one from the 16 signal source from right bottom section.

Users can custom the streaming display by selecting Custom and choose Color Fill or Image Fill. Choose Color Fill as following example:

© Streaming Setting				×
SIGNAL1	Argment	Setting	Layout	Setting
	Choose Mode	el 🚺 Defau	ilt 🔳	Custom
	Image			
	Model	🔳 Colo	r Fill 📃 I	mage Fill
	Choose Color			
	Transparency	(100	%
	Text			
	Text	X2		
X <i>2</i>	Font Size		62	%
			8	%
SIGNAL:1			26	%
	Choose Color			
			Sav	e
		2	3	4
	5	6	7	8
	9	10	11	12
	13	14	15	16
	All	Reset	Go Ba	ack

Choose Image Fill, users can load image from computer, see below:



Transparency: range from 0-100 which can ajust the transparency of the the filled image or color on the streaming display

text

text: Users can type in the text to show on the streaming display.

Font Size: Adjust the font size of the text, range from 0-100

X: Adjust the text horizontal position

Y:Adjust the text vertical position

Choose Color: Choose color for the text.



Choose Layout Setting

Users can set layout of the streaming display of the 16 inputs. Quick Layout is offered, for example 2 Row 2 Column, as picture below:

• Streaming Setting			-	X
Layout setting	Argmen	t Setting	Layout	Setting
	Quick Layou			
	Row	2	Column	2
		Set		leset
	1	2	3	4
	5	6	7	8
	9	10	11	12
	13	14	15	16
	All	Reset	Go Ba	ack

Total number of Row can not exceed 4, neither does the Column.

4.2.7 Slave Unit

Click the "Slave Unit", pop-up window as follows:

XPOSE			X
Device Number	rs 3	¢	Set Numbers
Index	Device IP		State
1 🔴	192.198.0.2	Open	Close
2 🔴		Open	Close
3 🔴		Open	Close
	G	ose All	Open All

If X2need to cascade with other devices, type in the number of devices and **Set Numbers**. IP of other devices will be shown. Users can close/open one by one or all.

When any connecting port is open the dot behind Index number will turn green, otherwise it

keeps red

4.2.8 Access Control

Q. Search	Output Settings	Operation Mode	Input settings	System Settings	Slave Unit	Lecess Control	[->	
		Access C	ontrol		Rights	Management		

Click the "Access Control", and enter the interface as follows:

Role management and rights management are included in access control, specific as follows:

Role Management

Click the "Role Management", and pop-up window as follows:

Role Management		×		
User List Admin	User Info			
user01 OUsers user02	User: Password: User Type:	Admin		
	Add	idit Del		

Add: Input the user name and password, and select the user type as "Admin' or "Users", click "**Add**" after setting.

Edit: Select the admin or users in user's list, then edit the password or user type, click "**Edit**" after setting.

Del: Select the admin or users in user's list, then click "**Del**", the selected user will be deleted.

Rights Management

Click the "Rights Management", and pop-up window as follows:



Select the admin or users in user's list, then click the rights in "Managements Detail". Click "**OK**" after setting. User can operate the rights that selected.

User Info: Display all the Admin or Users list, double click it will unfold or fold the list.

Management Details:

The admin can manage all the admin users and users user.

Admin users can manage all the users user, except the admin users.

Users can not mange all the users, including admin user and users user.

Chapter 5 Order Codes

5.1 Product

310-0002-01-0 X2

5.2 Options

5.2.1 Input Options

190-0002-02-1	Quad HDMI Input Module
190-0002-03-0	Triple VGA Input Module
190-0002-04-1	Quad SDI Input Module
190-0002-05-1	Quad CVBS Input Module
190-0002-09-1	Quad H.264 IP Streaming Input Module
190-0002-10-1	Quad USB Input Module
190-0002-11-0	4K@30 Digital Input Module
190-0002-06-0	Quad HDBaseT Input Module

5.2.2 Output Options

190-0002-22-1	Quad 2K HDMI Output Module
190-0002-24-0	Quad 3G SDI Output Module
190-0002-28-0	H.264 Output Module
190-0002-25-0	Quad HDBaseT Output Module

5.2.3 Other

950-0001-00-0 Hot Swap PSU 200W

190-0002-50-1 Preview (PVW) Module H.264/HDMI

Chapter 6 Appendix

6.1 Specification

CVBS Input Module			
Interface Appearance			
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)		
Number of Inputs	4		
Connector	BNC		
Supported Standards	PAL/NTSC/SECAM		
Signal Level	1Vpp±3db (0.7V Video+0.3v Sync) 75 ohm		
Multiple×	480i 576i		
VGA Input Module			
Interface Appearance			
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)		
Number of Inputs	3		
Connector	DB15		
Supported Standards	VGA-UXGA		
Signal Level	R, G, B, Hsync, Vsync:0 to1Vpp±3dB (0.7V Video+0.3v Sync) 75		
	ohm		
	black level: 300mV Sync-tip: 0V		
Supported Resolution	VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60 1280×1024@60 1440×900@60 1600×1200@60 1920×1080@60		
Supported Standard	VGA-UXGA		
USB Input Module			
Interface Appearance			
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)		
Number of Inputs	4		
Connector	USB-A		
max Supported	1920×1080@60		
Resolution	1720^1000@00		
Supported Standard	Support general Image and video formats		

S-HDMI Input Module	-
Interface Appearance	
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)
Number of Inputs	4
Connector	HDMI-A
Supported Resolution	SMPTE 625/25/50 PAL, 525/29.97/59.94 NTSC, 720p@50/60 1080i@50/59.94/60 1080p@50/59.94/60 VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60 1280×768@60 1280×1024@60 1600×1200@60 1920×1080@60
Embedded Audio	Select one from two inputs
Channels	
Format Standard	HDMI 1.3
4K Input Module	
Interface Appearance	E O HDMI 1.4 HDMI 1.4 LOOP DP 1.1 DP 1.1 LOOP
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)
HDMI Input	
Number of Inputs	2 (1 HDMI In, 1 Loop 1 DP In, 1 Loop)
Connectors	2×HDMI-A 2×DisplayPort
Supported Resolution	SMPTE 480i 576i 720p@50/59.94/60 1080i@50/59.94/60 1080p@50/59.94/60 2160p@23.98/24/25/29.97/30 VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60 1280×1024@60 1366×768@60 1440×900@60 1600×1200@60 1920×1080@60 3840X2160@24 3840X2160@25 3840×2160@30
Supported Standards	HDMI 1.4
	DP 1.1a
H.264 Input Module	-
Interface Appearance	
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)
Number of Inputs	4
Connector	RJ45
Supported Resolution	176×144 240×180 320×180 320×240 320×256 352×228
	352×480 400×224 400×320 480×270 480×272 480×320
	480×360 480×384 480×480 544×480 608×448 640×360

	640×480 704×576 720×404 720×480 720×540 720×576			
	850×480 1024×576 1280×720 1680×1056 1920×1080			
Refresh Rates	25~60Hz			
Supported Standards	H.264/MPEG-4 AVC			
Decoding Protocols	H.264 baseline/main/high profile L5.0			
	MPEG4 SP L0–3/ASP L0–5			
	MJPEG/JPEG baseline			
3G-SDI Input Module				
Interface Appearance				
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)			
Number of Inputs	4			
Connector	BNC			
Data Rate	2.97Gb/s, 2.97/1.001Gb/s, 1.485Gb/s, 1.485/1.001Gb/s and 270Mb/s			
Supported Standards	SMPTE 425M (Level A & B) SMPTE 424M SMPTE 292M SMPTE 259M-C DVB-ASI			
	480i 576i 720p@50/60 1080i@59.94/60			
Supported Resolution	1080p@23.98/24/25/29.97/30/50/59.94/60			
	1080psf@23.98/24/25/29.97/30 /50/59.94/60			
HDBaseT Input Module				
Interface Appearance	Obasef 1 HOBasef 2 HOBasef 4			
Number of Inputs	4			
Connector	RJ45			
Supported Standard	HDBaseT 1.0			
	SMPTE 480i 576i 720p@50/59.94/60 1080i@50/59.94/60 <			
	1080p@50/59.94/60			
Supported Resolution	VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60 1280×768@60			
	1280×1024@60 1600×1200@60 1920×1080@60			
	1920× 1200@60 2048×1152@60 2560×816@60			

HDMI Output Module	
Interface Appearance	
Board Size	131.6(L)X20(W) (mm)
Number of Outputs	4
Connector	HDMI-A
Supported Resolution	SMPTE 625/25 PAL, 525/29.97 NTSC, 625/50p PAL,
	525/59.94p NTSC,

	720p50/60 1080i50/59.94/60 1080P50/59.94/60				
	VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60 1280×768@60 1280×1024@60 1600×1200@60 1920×1080@50				
	1920×1080@60				
Supported Standards	HDMI 1.3				
SDI Output Module					
Interface Appearance					
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)				
Number of Outputs	4				
Connector	BNC				
Commonte d'Oten de ula	SMPTE 425M (Level A) SMPTE 424M SMPTE 292M				
Supported Standards	SMPTE 259M-C DVB-ASI				
Summented Deselution	SMPTE 720p@50/59.94/60 1080i@50/59.94/60				
	1080p@23.98/24/25/29.97/30/50/59.94/60				
Supported Bandwidth	Max Data Rate up to 2.97Gbps				
H.264 Preview Output M	odule				
Interface Appearance	H.264 1 OUT				
Board Size	131.6(L)×20(W) (mm)				
H.264 Output					
Number of Outputs	3				
Connector	2×RJ45 1×HDMI-A				
Supported Resolution	H.264				
	176×144 240×180 320×180 320×240 320×256 352×228				
	352×480 400×224 400×320 480×270 480×272 480×320				
	480X360 480X384 480×480 544×480 608×448 640×360				
	640×480 704×576 720×404 720×480 720×540 720×576				
	850×480 1024×576 1280×720 1680×1056 1920×1080				
	HDMI				
	SMPTE 480i 576i 720p@50/59.94/60 1080i@50/59.94/60				
	1080p@25/29.97/30/50/59.94/60				
	VESA 1024×768@60/75/85 1280×800@60				
	1280×1024@60/75/85 1360×768@60 1366×768@60				
	1400×1050@60 1440×900@60 1600×1200@60				
	1680×1050@60 1920×1080@60				
Supported Standards	H.264 MJPEG/JPEG baseline				
	HDMI 1.3				
HDBaseT Output Module					

Interface Apperance	Induo	HDBaseT 1	HDBaseT 2	HDBaseT 3	HDBaseT 4
Number of Inputs	4				
Connector	RJ45				
Supported Standard	HDBaseT 1.0				
	SMPTE 720p@50/59.94/60 1080p@50/59.94/60				
	VESA 800×600@60 1024×768@60/75/85				
1280×720@50/59.94/60 1280×800					800@60
Supported Resolution	ed Resolution 1280×960@60 1280×1024@60/75/85				
	1400×1050@60 1600×1200@60				
		1920>	1080@23.98	3/24/25/29.97	/30/50/59.94/60
		2048×2	1152@60		
Communication Interfac	e				
Interface Appearance	Genick				
Board Size	131.6(L)X	K20(W) (m	m)		
Genlock Input					
Number of Inputs	2				
Connector	1×BNC	1× HDMI-A	A		
Signal Level	Genlok	NTSC/	PAL, TRI SY	/NC/Blackmag	gic signal
	(Y/H/V)				
	HDMI	HDMI	to TTL timin	ig signal	
Supported Resolution	Genlok (Y/H/V)	480i	576i 720)p@50/60 2	1080i@50/59.94/60
		1080p(@50/59.94/6	0	
	HDMI	1920 ×2	1080@60		
Control Port	1		_		
LAN	RJ45				
ULink	ULink In	ULink Ou	ut		
Function					
Switch	Support a	ny two inpu	its fade in fac	le out	
E×tras					
Power Supply	100-240V	/ IEC-3			
Working Environment	0°C~45°C	2			
Stored Environment	10% to 90)%			
Product Warranty	3 years pa	arts and labo	or warranty		

6.2 Software Upgrade

Upgrade the software by the USB interface in the front panel of X2, the upgrade steps are as follows:

- 1. Copy the "*.pkg" file to the USB disk, and modify the file name to "_update.pkg".
- 2. Plug into the power cord and make sure the X2is in normal operation.
- Plug the USB disk into the USB interface in the front panel of X2, the device will upgrade automatically. The buzzer sounds beeps during upgrade, the beeps will stop and the USB disk will delete the upgrade file automatically after complete upgrade.

6.3 Install Options

6.3.1 Install Input Module

X2 and VENUS X3 support replaceable input and output optional modules, user can install or replace the optional module according to actual need. The installation steps of X2and VENUS X3 are the same. Here we take VENUS X3 for example, specific steps are as follows:

Install the Optional Module

1. Unscrew the 2 captive screws in input modules block, and pull out the input module block, as shown in figure:



2. Install the input module:

For the whole PCB input module with DVI or HDMI interface, fix the input module on the plate with 2 M3*4 flat screws, also need to install the 2G Micro SD card.



DVI input module:



3. fix the input module block with fixed screws, as shown in figure:



4. Push the input modules into the device along the slide rail, and screw the captive screws, as shown in figure:



Note: The install steps of output module installation and input/output module replacement are the same as above.

6.3.2 Install Power Module

One power module as standard for X2, as shown in figure 1:

(Figure 1)

If necessary, two power modules can be installed, the specific steps are as follows:

1. Unscrew the two M4 ground screws between the power module and power box with a screwdriver, and take out the power module fixed holder, as shown in figure 2:



(Figure 2)

2. Unscrew the two M3*8 flat head screws on the left side of the power module holder with a screwdriver, and take out the power module holder, as shown in figure 3:



(Figure 3)

3. Push the power module into the slot, as shown in figure 4:





4. fix the two power modules with two M4 ground screws and a power module fixed holder, as shown in figure 5:





5. fix the power box with two M3*8 flat head screws, and the installation is finished, as shown in figure 6:



(Figure 6)

6.4 Care and Preventive Maintenance

6.4.1 Clean Cooling Fan

The fan is designed to keep the device cool and within temperature range during normal operation. Ensuring that the fan module is clean, dust free is important to maintain product warranty, correct working order and for safety.

Clean fan assembly at least every six months, or more regularly depending on the installed environment.

Step 1: Loosen the screw and pull out the fan module

Step: Clean dust on the front and back of the fan module by brush.



Step 3: Loosen the locking screw to separate the dust screen and fan. Clean the screen and fan by brush.



Step 4: Reverse steps above.

Put the dust screen back to the fan and tighten the screw.

Push the fan module back to the device and tighten the screw.



6.5 Terms & Definitions

The following terms and definitions are used throughout this guide.

- "ASCII": American Standard for Information Interchange. The standard code consisting of 7-bit coded characters (8 bits including parity check) used to e×change information between data processing systems, data communication systems, and associated equipment. The ASCII set contains control characters and graphic characters.
- "Aspect ratio": The relationship of the horizontal dimension to the vertical dimension of an image. In viewing screens, standard TV is 4:3, or 1.33:1; HDTV is 16:9, or 1.78:1. Sometimes the ":1" is implicit, making TV = 1.33 and HDTV = 1.78.
- "AV": Audio visual, or audio video.
- A **"Background"** is an unscaled source, typically originating from a computer. A background source appears at the system's lowest priority visually in back of all other sources.
- **"Baudrate":** Named of J.M.E. Baudot, the inventor of the Baudot telegraph code. The number of the electrical oscillations per second, called baud rate. Related to, but not the same as, transfer rate in bits per second (bps).
- "Blackburst": The video waveform without the video elements. It includes the vertical sync, horizontal sync, and the chroma burst information. Blackburst is used to synchronize video equipment to align the video output. One signal is normally used to set up an entire video system or facility. Sometimes it is called House sync.
- "BNC": Bayonet Neill-Concelman. A cable connector used e×tensively in television and named for its inventors. A cylindrical bayonet connector that operates with a twist-locking motion. To make the connection, align the two curved grooves in the collar of the male connector with the two projections on the outside of the female collar, push, and twist. This allows the connector to lock into place without tools.
- **"Brightness":** Usually refers to the amount or intensity of video light produced on a screen without regard to color. Sometimes called "black level.
- "CAT 5": Category 5. Describes the network cabling standard that consists of four unshielded twisted pairs of copper wire terminated by RJ-45 connectors. CAT 5 cabling supports data rates up to 100 Mbps. CAT 5 is based on the EIA/TIA 568 Commercial Building Telecommunications Wiring Standard.
- "Color bars": A standard test pattern of several basic colors (white, yellow, cyan, green, magenta, red, blue, and black) as a reference for system alignment and testing. In NTSC video, the most commonly used color bars are the SMPTE standard color bars. In PAL video, the most commonly used color bars are eight full field bars. In the computer, the most commonly used color bars are two rows of reversed color bars.
- **"Color burst":** In color TV systems, a burst of subcarrier frequency located on the back porch of the composite video signal. This serves as a color synchronizing signal to establish a frequency and phase reference for the chroma signal. Color burst is 3.58 MHz for NTSC and 4.43 MHz for PAL.
- **"Color temperature":** The color quality, expressed in degrees Kelvin(K), of a light source. The higher the color temperature, the bluer the light. The lower the temperature, the

redder the light. Benchmark color temperature for the A/V industry include 5000°K, 6500°K, and 9000°K.

- "Contrast ratio": The radio of the high light output level divided by the low light output level. In theory, the contrast radio of the television system should be at least 100:1, if not 300:1. In reality, there are several limitations. In the CRT, light from adjacent elements contaminate the area of each element. Room ambient light will contaminate the light emitted from the CRT. Well-controlled viewing conditions should yield a practical contrast ratio of 30:1 to 50:1.
- "DVI": Digital Visual Interface. The digital video connectivity standard that was developed by DDWG (Digital Display Work Group). This connection standard offers two different connectors: one with 24 pins that handles digital video signals only, and one with 29 pins that handles both digital and analog video.
- "EDID": Extended Display Identification Data EDID is a data structure used to communicate video display information, including native resolution and vertical interval refresh rate requirements, to a source device. The source device will then output the optimal video format for the display based on the provided EDID data, ensuring proper video image quality. This communication takes place over the DDC Display Data Channel.
- "Ethernet": A Local Area Network (LAN) standard officially known as IEEE 802.3. Ethernet and other LAN technologies are used for interconnecting computers, printers, workstations, terminals, servers, etc. within the same building or campus. Ethernet operates over twisted pair and over coaxial cable at speeds starting at 10Mbps. For LAN inter-connectivity, Ethernet is physical link and data link protocol reflecting the two lowest layers of the OSI Reference Model.
- **"Frame":** In interlaced video, a frame is one complete picture. A video frame is made up of two fields, or two sets of interlaced lines. In a film, a frame is one still picture of a series that makes up a motion picture.
- **"Gamma":** The light output of a CRT is not linear with respect to the voltage input. The difference between what you should have and what is actually output is known as gamma.
- "HDMI" High Definition Multimedia Interface: An interface used primarily in consumer electronics for the transmission of uncompressed high definition video, up to 8 channels of audio, and control signals, over a single cable. HDMI is the default standard for HDTV displays, Blu-ray Disc players, and other HDTV electronics. Introduced in 2003, the HDMI specification has gone through several revisions.
- "HDSDI": The high-definition version of SDI specified in SMPTE-292M. This signal standard transmits audio and video with 10 bit depth and 4:2:2 color quantization over a single coaxial cable with a data rate of 1.485 Gb/s. Multiple video resolutions exists including progressive 1280×720 and interlaced 1920×1080 resolution. Up to 32 audio signals are carried in the ancillary data.
- "JPEG" (Joint photographic Expects Group): Commonly used method of lossy compression for photographic images using a discreet cosine transfer function. The degree of compression can be adjusted, allowing a selectable tradeoff between storage size and image quality. JPEG typically achieves 10:1 compression with little perceptible loss in image quality. Produces blocking artifacts.
- "MPEG": Motion Picture Expect Group. A standard committee under the auspices of the International Standards Organization working on algorithm standards that allow digital compression, storage and transmission of moving image information such as motion video, CD-quality audio, and control data at CD-ROM bandwidth. The MPEG algorithm provides inter-frame compression of video images and can have an effective compression rate of 100:1 to 200:1.
- "NTSC": The color video standard used in North America and some other parts of the world created by the National Television Standards Committee in the 1950s. A color signal must be compatible with black-and-white TV sets. NTSC utilizes an interlaced video signals, 525 lines of resolution with a refresh rate of 60 fields per second (60 Hz). Each frame is comprised of two fields of 262.5 lines each, running at an effective rate of 30 frames per second.
- "Operator": Refers to the person who uses the system.
- **"PAL":** Phase Alternate Line. A television standard in which the phase of the color carrier is alternated from line to line. It takes four full pictures (8 fields) for the color-to-horizontal phase relationship to return to the reference point. This alternation helps cancel out phase errors. For this reason, the hue control is not needed on a PAL TV set. PAL, in many transmission forms, is widely used in Western Europe, Australia, Africa, the Middle East, and Micronesia. PAL uses 625-line, 50-filed (25 fps) composite color transmission system.
- "PIP": Picture-in-Picture. A small picture within a larger picture created by scaling down one of the images to make it smaller. Each picture requires a separate video source such as a camera, VCR, or computer. Other forms of PIP displays include Picture-by-Picture (PBP) and Picture-with-Picture (PWP), which are commonly used with 16:9 aspect display devices. PBP and PWP image formats require a separate scaler for each video window.
- **"Polarity":** The positive and negative orientation of a signal. Polarity usually refers to the direction or a level with respect to a reference (e.g. positive sync polarity means that sync occurs when the signal is going in the positive direction).
- **"RJ-45":** Registered Jack-45. A connector similar to a telephone connector that holds up to eight wires, used for connecting Ethernet devices.
- "RS-232": An Electronic Industries Association (EIA) serial digital interface standard specifying the characteristics of the communication path between two devices using either DB-9 or DB-25 connectors. This standard is used for relatively short-range communication and does not specify balanced control lines. RS-232 is a serial control standard with a set number of conductors, data rate, word length, and type of connector to be used. The standard specifies component connection standards with regard to the computer interface. It is also called RS-232-C, which is the third version of the RS-232 standard, and is functionally identical to the CCITT V.24 standard.
- "Saturation": Chroma, chroma gain. The intensity of the color, or the e×tent to which a given color in any image is free from white. The less white in a color, the truer the color or the greater its saturation. On a display device, the color control adjusts the saturation. Not to be confused with the brightness, saturation is the amount of pigment in a color, and not the intensity. Low saturation is like adding white to the color. For example, a low-saturated red looks pink.

- **"Scaling":** A conversion of a video or computer graphic signal from a starting resolution to a new resolution. Scaling from one resolution to another is typically done to optimize the signal for input to an image processor, transmission path or to improve its quality when presented on a particular display.
- **"SDI":** Serial Digital Interface. The standard based on a 270 Mbps transfer rate. This is a 10-bit, scrambled, polarity independent interface with common scrambling for both component ITU-R 601 and composite digital video and four channels of (embedded) digital audio.
- "Seamless Switching": A feature found on many video switchers. This feature causes the switcher to wait until the vertical interval to switch. This avoid a glitch (temporary scrambling) which normally is seen when switching between sources.
- "SMPTE": Society of Motion Picture and Television Engineers. A global organization, based in the United States, that sets standards for baseband visual communications. This includes film as well as video and television standards.
- "S-Video": A composite video signal separated into the luma ("Y" is for luma, or black and white information; brightness) and the chroma ("C" is an abbreviation for chroma, or color information).
- "Sync": Synchronization. In video, sync is a means of controlling the timing of an event with respect to other events. This is accomplished with timing pulses to insure that each step in a process occurs at the correct time. For example, horizontal sync determines e × actly when to begin each horizontal scan line. Vertical sync determines when the image is to be refreshed to start a new field or frame. There are many other types of sync in video system. (Also known as "sync signal" or "sync pulse.")
- "TCP/IP": Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol. The communication protocol of the Internet. Computers and devices with direct access to the Internet are provided with a copy of the TCP/IP program to allow them to send and receive information in an understandable form.
- "USB": Universal Serial Bus. USB was developed by seven PC and telecom industry leaders (Compaq, DEC, IBM, Intel, Microsoft, NEC, and Northern Telecom). The goal was easy plug-and-play expansion outside the box, requiring no additional circuit cards. Up to 127 external computer devices may be added through a USB hub, which may be conveniently located in a keyboard or monitor. USB devices can be attached or detached without removing computer power. The number of devices being designed for USB continues to grow, from keyboards, mice, and printers to scanners, digital cameras, and ZIP drives.
- **"VESA":** Video Electronics Standards Association. A nonprofit number organization dedicated to facilitating and promoting personal computer graphics through improved standards for the benefit of the end-user. www.vesa.org
- "VGA": Video Graphics Array. Introduced by IBM in 1987, VGA is an analog signal with TTL level separate horizontal and vertical sync. The video outputs to a 15-pin HD connector and has a horizontal scan frequency of 31.5 kHz and vertical frequency of 70 Hz (Mode 1, 2) and 60 Hz (Mode 3). The signal is non-interlaced in modes 1, 2, and 3 and interlaced when using the 8514/A card (35.5 kHz, 86 Hz) in mode 4. It has a pi×el by line resolution of 640×480 with a color palette of 16 bits and 256,000 colors.

- "YCrCb": Used to describe the color space for interlaced component video.
- **"YPbPr":** Used to describe the color space for progressive-scan (non-interlaced) component video.

6.6 Revision History

The table below lists the changes to the Video Processor User Manual.

Format	Time	ECO#	Description	Principal
V1.0	2015-06-11	0000#	Release	Vira
V1.1	2015-07-16	0001#	Add "Optional Module Installation and	Vira
			Replacement Instruction"	
V1.2	2015-11-12	0002#	1. Update the product picture.	Vira
			2. Update the back panel.	
			3. Update the dimensions drawing.	
			4. Update the menu tree.	
			5. Update the windows control	
			program.	
V1.3	2016-03-07	0003#	1. Update the back panel.	Vira
			2. Update the logo.	
			3. Update the fa \times number.	
V1.4	2016-05-05	0004#	1. Update the windows control	Vira
			program.	
V1.5	2016-07-20	0005#	1. Update the style and structure of the	Vira
			user manual.	
			2. Update the back panel.	
			3. Add "Ordering Codes".	
			4. Add 4K, H.264 and WIFI	
			specification, etc.	
			5. Add "Installing WIFI Module".	
			6. Add "Installing Power Module".	
V1.6	2018-12-11	0006#	1. Update SDI output module	Fanny
			2. Update "In the box"	
V1.7	2019-4-10	0007#	1. Add Control by XPOSE	Fanny
			2. Add HDBaseT Input and Output to	
			Specification	
V 1.8	2019-6-20	0008	1. Revise 4K@30 input	Fanny
V1.9	2019-8-09	0009#	1. Add "Clean Cooling Fan"	Fanny
				-